










Lord by Elder L. E. Conner. The exact day and mon th of the dedication is not 
known as the early records were destroyed . 

There was also the selection of a name for the church . Many of the first 
ministers were of the Advent Christian faith. Elders Austin , Conner, VanVactor 
and others were from the Church of God . Again much searching of the Scriptures 
followed and since the name "Church of God" seemed the only Scriptural name 
given, that was the name chosen . It was not until a number of years later that 
" Of the Abrahamic Faith" was added . This was done largely to distinguish this group 
from the many others using the name Church of God. 

EARLY CHURCH PASTORS 
The church grew and prospered in the next few years under the ministry of 

Elders Austin, VanVactor, A. H. Zilmer, Willis Logan" S. J. Lindsay, Conner, Sister 
B. W . Woodward and others serving the congregation from time to time . Many 
faithful worke rs were added to the church during these years. Some of which 
were, Anna Aley Cochran, Hettie Fetters, Pearl Hatten Z echiel , Ida Osborn, Isabelle 
Bender Weaver, and many others now fallen as leep. 

The joy of these zealous people was to be short li ved however, for on the 
morning of June twenty-first, 1908, the church was struc k by lightning and com­
pletely destroyed. The pews, pulpit, organ and some of the small furnishings were 
saved however. 

REBUILDINC DESTROYED CHURCH 
The struggle of building the first church was still vivid in the minds of this 

small congregation. Now it was to be gone through with agai n . Many might have 
said " It is hardly worth the effort." These people had been without a church and they 
knew how difficult that condition was. God's W ord was ve ry precious to their 
hearts. When faith might have faltered and utte rl y have failed under so grave a 
testing, these people faced undaunted the task of immediately setting to work to 
bui Id another church. On October eighth of that same yea r the trustees and mem­
bers of the church met at the home of Sister Anna Aley to make final decisions as 
to the building of the new church . Trustees George M. Osborn and Albert Over­
myer, Sr., proposed the new church be built the same as the former with the exception 
that patent la th and a shingle roof be used instead of sla te as was on the first . Also 
that the church be without a bell. It was necessary to conserve wherever possible . 
The amount of $ 1200.00 was rece ived from the insu rance and they wished to start 
with as little indebtedness as possi ble . It was necessary to subscribe considerable 
sums of money to meet the bu ilding needs. Some of these pledges made could not 
be paid when the time came. W ithout a word to anyone Brothers Osborn and Over­
myer assumed the remaining indebtedness. Some of these facts were never disclosed 
to the public until the writin g of this history. 

There were st ill many obstacles to mount , but with a strong faith in God these 
problems were met. Brother George Maxey, one of the elders of the church at 
that time, was also very influental in the work of the bui Iding . One moonlight night 
Mr. Maxey seemed very troubled and could not sleep. He arose, dressed and walked 
over to the place where the new church was being bui lt. There to his amazement 
was a man very easily recognized helping himself to nine bundles of lath. Mr. 
Maxey watched the man and never said a word. After the man left Mr. Maxey went 
home. The lath was replaced and there were very few people that ever knew of 
this incident, and only a couple of people to this day ever knew just who the man 
was. Yes, it took courage then to be a Christian even as it does now. How nobly 
many of those who made this church possible met the challenge of life . Pray that 
we may always do as well . 



DEDICATION SERVICE, AUCUST 8, 1909 
Some fel t the Hand of God was agai nst these people when their church was 

destroyed by li ghtni ng. However the people of the church accepted their misfortune 
as a test of thei r fa ith, and they immediately se t forth to replace their church . On 
August 8th, 1909, Elder L. E. Conner came from Cleve land, Ohio, where he was 
pastoring a Church of God, and dedicated the second church. This being the church 
bU ilding we now have. 

Sunday School and prayer meet ings were about all the services held at the new 
church during the remai nder of that year. In fact the work was entirely held together 
by the Sunday School. Uncle Sam and George Osborl:l were the leaders of the 
Sunday School during those ea rly yea rs. The on ly recorded preach ing services until 
late in the year of 191 0 were t hirteen sermons de li vered by Elder Joseph Williams 
of Hillisburg, Ind iana, and two sermons by an Elde r Drew . However, there were four 
baptisms recorded in thi s year, one of which was Sr. Laura Overmyer Behmer. From 
t he yea r 19 10 to 19 15 the church was served interm ittently by only a very few 
ministe rs. One of which was Orin Jenks, now President Emeri tus of Aurora College . 

SUNDAY SCHOOL WORK 

Du ri ng these yea rs the Sunday School was the backbone of the church. If we 
ever doubt the value of the Sund ay School we have but to look at our past history to 
see ju st how important the work of th is depa rtment can be. Truly if it were not 
for the fa ithful members that kept the church doors open and continued to teach the 
W ord, the work of the ea rl y fai thful would have been for naught. Many times the 
number was so sma ll that the back cl ass room adequate ly served the entire Sun­
day School. Again I ask, wou ld our fai th have been so stron g? 

In 1915 the church seemed to take on new li fe. Elder C. C. Maple of Argos 
Elder D. E. VanVactor and Elder J. R. Fox, a ll mi niste red a t the church . At least 
tw enty were baptized duri ng these services. Wh ile many new laborers were added 
to the fo ld t he work was still largely carr ied on by the Sunday Schoo l unt il about 1924. 

ELDER J. H. ANDERSON 

A number of years had passed and no evangel ist ic efforts had been put forth . 
The harvest truly seemed white and a goodly number were ready to embrace t he 
Truth. It was ag reed to have Sr. Pea rl Zechie l write to El de r J. H. Anderson and 
see if it wou ld be possible for him to come to Burr Oak for services. His fi rst reply 
was favorable. The group set to work to ra ise t he money and have everything in 
readi ness before hi s arri val. I t would seem he had inqui red concern ing the work 
here and fe lt the effort mi ght not be profitable . He t hen wrote and declined to 
come. W hen he was informed of the work the peopl e had set out to do, and how 
everyt hing was a rranged for, he fel t surely where the people were so anxious to have 
the Gospel preached, he could not refuse. Th is time he wrote consenting to come. 
This p roved to be the rea l awakening of the church . Many young people accepted 
Christ and set out to work for hi m. One t ha t has endeared herse lf to the hearts of 
so many was the late Leta Osborn Johnson. El der Anderson conti nued to serve the 
church two Sundays each month fo r a number of years, in fact unti l about 1932. 

FIRST FULL TIME PASTOR 

Until this time this present church had never had a full ti me resident pas to r. Many 
felt we woul d never rea lly accompli sh our rea l purpose in servi ng our community unt il 
we had a shepherd to feed the fl ock and labor in their midst all the time. In 1932 
Elder C. A. Smead was hired as our f irst pastor. The goi ng wasn't easy as the church 
was pretty we ll established in its ways and unused to outside leadership. 



In 1934 ·Elder Austin again came to our rescue. He assisted in worki ng out a 
church constitution by which there would be orderly and established rules for working. 
This was indeed a great help as the working rules of the church were quite obsolete. 

In 1935 Elder A. E. Hoskins moved into our midst as the pastor. During his minist ry 
here the church again made some very great strides forward. Elder Hoskins aattended the 
county ministerial meetings, and did many things that gave US recognition in the com­
munity. He encouraged many of our teachers to ava il themselves of the county teachers 
train ing courses bei ng held at tha t time . Also during his ministry here and by the en­
couragement of the Morning Star Sunday School Class, the work of building a full 
basement was begun. There was a great need for c lass rooms and a place large enough 
for fellowship meetings without using the sanctuary of the church for all occasions . 
In 1937 the work was completed and dedicated. 

OTHER PASTORS 
Following Elde r Hoskins, the church was served by Elder Wilsey McKnight and 

family. Elder James W. McLain and family succeeded the McKnights. Elder McLain 
served as half time pastor and the remainder of his time was devoted to evangelistic work . 
The church ccontinued to grow spi ritua ll y and in number under his ministry. In December 
of 1940 Elde r McLain resigned his pastorate to go into full t ime evange listic work. Elder 
C. R. Randall, then a student at Oregon Bibl e College, filled the pulpit for some time 
afterward . 

A happy note to add to our past history was the few yea rs when Elder L. E. 
Conne r, now in his "seventies," came to Burr Oak for one to two Sundays each month. 
His sermons of sound doctrine and pract ica l Chri stian experi ence endeared the Word 
more profoundly to the congregation . We shall always be gratefu l and cherish his 
wise admonition . 

ELDER SHEETS 
The church was very much in need of a full time pastor so inquiry was made of 

the National Bible Institution as to available men . It was suggested that we contact 
Elder Harry A. Sheets who at that time was not engaged in the minist ry . Afte r much 
prayer and consideration, he agreed to come to Burr Oak from Aurora, Illino is, twice 
each month . This, with holding down a full time factory job was a real service on his 
part. After serving the church in thi s capacity for about three years , and turn ing down 
as many offe rs to come as a full time pastor, we were a ll most happily surpri sed to 
receive a call of acceptance afte we thought it use less to offer again. 

In 1945 the church had purchased the Neil Shock property west of the church as 
a parsonage. With few exceptions the money paid Elder Shee ts while he was driv ing 
from Aurora was turned into the parsonage fund that the indebtedness might be quickly 
liquidated . The parsonage was modernized upon word of his acceptance . 

CHURCH GROWTH 
The church has mounted to new hei ghts under his ministry. W e pray it shall ever 

continue to do so and serve as a beacon light in this community fo r Christ . May it ever 
continue to lead men and women to the saving knowledge of the Lord Jesus until He calls 

us into His completed and glorified Church. 
As the church has grown through the years, each and eve ry department has con­

tinued to grow. Today our Sunday School as the educational department of the chu rch , 
is most outstanding as a means of teaching the Word of God. Some of its leaders 
through the years have been Uncle Sam Osborn, George Osborn, W alliam Marme, Melvin J. 
Osborn, Dunn W .Weaver, D. Hatten and many othe rs of more recent years . Norman 

LaMunion is serving at this present time. 
The Ladies' Organization has been no small part of the church work either. In 

many emergencies they have ri sen to the occasion and shoul et4 rtlie load whe there 

els fib do t!{e work. As Lydia and Dorcas of' old, our women have carried 
was no one \ 



on a noble and far reach ing service, for which the church can be justly proud. Sr. Mary 
Hatten is the present leader of this department. 

Every department and every class has its work to do, and is a part of the church 
as a whole. The present elders appointed by the church are Dewey Overmyer and 
Darrell Carli sle. May God continue to bless the church as He has so wondrously blessed 
it in the past. May the coming of the Lord find each in our place, serving daily as 
becometh a good soldier of the Cross. May the Burr Oak Church of God continue to 
grow in the grace of God, and carry the message of "Salvation" until the "Well done, 
good and faithful se rvant" shall be proclaimed of it. 
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